ATIONS CERD

Di str.
GENERAL

International Convention on
the Elimination

CERD/ C/ SR. 1282
of all Forms of 14 Decenber 1998
Racial Discrimination

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-third session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1282nd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 6 August 1998, at 3 p.m

Chai r man: M. ABOUL- NASR
CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Twelfth and thirteenth periodic reports of Mrocco (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98-17510 (E)



CERD/ C/ SR. 1282
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Twel fth and thirteenth periodic reports of Myrocco (CERD/ C/ 298/ Add. 4;
HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 23) (conti nued)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. Benjelloun Touin , M. Bel mah
and M. Majdi_ (Mdrocco) took places at the Committee table.

2. M. BENJELLOUN TOUIM (Morocco), Pernmanent Representative of Mrocco to
the O fice of the United Nations in CGeneva, introducing the report of Morocco
(CERD/ C/ 298/ Add. 4), said that that document conbined the twelfth and
thirteenth periodic reports of his country.

3. In the course of the 1990s, the Kingdom of Mdrocco had taken a nunber of
normative and institutional neasures to inprove and increase respect for human
rights and a nunber of concrete initiatives in their favour. That effort had
been expanded to include the revision of the Constitution and the creation of
a bicaneral Parlianent, thereby setting the stage for early general elections,
which had resulted in a Governnment of a different conplexion. |Its formation,
under the | eadership of M. El Youssoufi, a nenber of the opposition who had

l ong worked in Geneva in non-governnmental human rights organizations,
constituted an historic noment in the nodernization of Mdrocco's politica
life.

4. Presenting his Governnent's progranme in Parlianent on 17 April 1998,
the Prime Mnister had stated that “the defence of universally recognized
human rights constitutes one of the essential policies of the Governnent”.
That commitnent nust lead to a final settlenment of a nunber of situations
still pending by bringing legislation into [ine with the internationa

i nstruments to which Morocco was a party and by a nmore sustained effort to
promote the culture of human rights. The reformof the judiciary would be
given priority in the Governnent's action

5. As an extension of that positive devel opnent, Mrocco was endeavouring
to strengthen that action by fostering the culture of human rights at al

| evel s of society so that all citizens becane i nmbued with human rights val ues
in their public and private lives. At the |level of secondary education, the
objective was to prepare pupils to becone receptive to the basic principles of
human rights and to adopt positions and behavi oural patterns which showed that
they had beconme aware of those rights and respected those of others. That
human rights educati on programe was being inplemented in cooperation with the
United Nations Hi gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights in accordance with an
agreenent on the subject signed in 1997.

6. In addition to those neasures, Mrocco was endeavouring to broaden and
intensify the dial ogue and cooperation wi th national associations directly or
indirectly involved with human rights questions in order to adopt sol utions
whi ch showed the greatest respect for human rights. It was also seeking to
expand and intensify the dialogue with international and regi onal governnenta
and non-governnental organizations so as to consolidate cooperation and give



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1282
page 3

Morocco a nmore dynamic role on the international scene. In that context a
first neeting of Mediterranean national institutions had been held in
Marrakesh in April 1998; it had been attended by the H gh Comm ssioner for
Human Ri ghts, Ms. Mary Robi nson. Subsequently, in My 1998 the
Secretary-Ceneral of Ammesty International had visited Morocco to inaugurate
the offices of that organization in Rabat and have a nunber of neetings with
both nenbers of the Governnent and representatives of civil society.

7. Those deci sions and neasures, although not directly linked to the
provi sions of the Convention, had neverthel ess given positive inpetus to the
strengthening of the legal, admnistrative and judicial framework of human
rights protection.

8. Concerning the International Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forns
of Racial Discrimnation, the various reports subnmtted to the Commttee
showed that the Mdroccan authorities had never recorded any violations of that
i nstrument.

9. On the subject of article 4 and the need for all countries to enact
crimnal |egislation specifically punishing acts of racial discrimnation, the
Prime Mnister had not failed to point out in his Government's statenment in
Parliament that the “Myroccan Governnent woul d bring Mroccan | egislation into
line with international instrunents” as concerned human rights.

10. M. de GOUTTES (Country Rapporteur for Mrocco) was pleased that the
Government of Mbrocco was regularly fulfilling its treaty obligations. In so
doing it was denmponstrating a praisewrthy determination to maintain a regul ar
di al ogue with the Conmittee, which was not the case with all States parties.
He al so wel coned the presence of a high-level Mroccan del egati on and
expressed appreciation of the quality of the oral presentation it had just
del i vered.

11. The consi deration of the periodic report of Mirocco was of particul ar
interest to the Cormittee. Firstly, Mdrrocco had a key position owing to its
special role as a bridge between the European and the African and Islamc
worlds, and also its stability in a region which had too often had to face

i nternal divisions and currents of fanaticismor intolerance. Secondly, in
recent years Myrocco had gradually committed itself to reform nodernization
openness and strengthening the rule of law, an enterprise which the Conmttee
coul d not but support and encourage.

12. In the light of that very positive trend and the special attention which
the Committee had given to Morocco's |atest report, the thirteenth periodic
report did not appear to nmeet the Conmittee' s expectations. The ora

expl anations provided by the delegation had to a certain extent updated the
core docunent, which had not been nodified since 28 April 1993. But as to the
report as such, the information contained in both parts was rather perfuntory,
too exclusively legal and too restricted to an enuneration of texts. It did
not cast sufficient light on the practical, concrete and effective

i mpl enmentation of the provisions of the Convention in Mdrocco. Nor did it
answer certain questions posed and observati ons made by the nenbers of the
Committee in 1994 during the consideration of the previous report, in
particul ar on the subject of the four main points which had been raised at
that time, nanely the insufficient data on the ethnic conposition of the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1282
page 4

popul ation; the failure to bring Mroccan donmestic legislation into line with
the requirenments of article 4 of the Convention; the absence of statistica
data and practical exanples of court decisions follow ng conplaints of acts of
racial or ethnic discrimnation; and the insufficiency of the information on
the situation of certain population groups likely to be targets of

di scrim nation.

13. The report did, however, contain sone interesting information on |and
and peopl e, general political structure, authorities with jurisdiction for the
protection of human rights, renedies available in the event of violation of
human rights and publicity and information on human rights. It also contained
a nunber of positive elenents: the constitutional affirmtion of respect for
human rights; the possibility of directly invoking ratified internationa
conventions in the courts; establishment of machinery to nonitor the

i mpl enmentation of the recently ratified Convention on the Elimnation of Al
Forms of Discrimnation agai nst Wonen and the Convention on the Rights of the
Chld; the entry into force of the Convention agai nst Torture; the
establ i shnment of the Human Rights Advisory Council and the Mnistry of Human
Ri ghts; the constitutional guarantee of equality of all citizens before the

| aw and the rights of foreigners in Mrrocco; and the initiation by the King in
1994 of steps towards a revival of the Berber |anguage and cul ture.

14. But that information needed to be fleshed out on a nunber of points.
Firstly, concerning the conposition of the popul ation, he noted that, when the
el eventh periodic report of Mrocco had been considered, the Committee had
reiterated the need to have information on the ethnic characteristics of the
popul ati on and had asked the Moroccan del egation to indicate why the
authorities had carried out studies and censuses solely on the basis of

soci o-econom ¢ criteria, and not ethnic, racial or |inguistic ones, which
woul d have given a nore conplete idea of the population. Unfortunately,

par agraphs 2 and 3 of the report only provided a few brief figures from 1994
and 1995 on the total population of the country, the average density, the
wor ki ng popul ati on and the proportion of Mdroccans living in rural or urban
areas. Those figures still failed to enlighten the Cormittee on the ethnic
characteristics of the Mdroccan population. He reiterated the Committee's
request in that regard and hoped that the Morocan del egati on woul d provi de
nmore conplete information in its next periodic report.

15. The second poi nt which needed to be devel oped concerned the genera
political, econom c and social context in the country, on which paragraphs 1
to 16 of the thirteenth report did not provide sufficiently detailed and
recent information. That was all the nore regrettable in that the Governnent
surely had much to say, since it had conmtted itself in recent years to
strengthening the rule of law, inmproving the situation of human rights and
undertaki ng a vast project of reform nodernization and a gradual politica
and econom ¢ opening - all subjects in which the Committee was very

i nterested.

16. In particular, he asked the delegation to provide updated information on
the process of political change enbarked upon by the King and the | essons

whi ch could be drawn from the coexi stence within the Governnent of riva
political forces.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1282
page 5

17. The Conmittee would also Iike to obtain nore details about the basic
refornms undertaken in the area of the judiciary. He had in mnd initiatives
by the Mnister of Justice to conbat corruption, to restructure the judicia
system to inprove the training of judges and reformtheir status, to humani ze
conditions of detention in overcrowded prisons and to revise the crimna
procedure and the prison code. Turning to the social, econom c and

adm nistrative fields, he asked the delegation to informthe Comm ttee what
progress had been made with the plans to nodernize secondary and vocati ona
education, conbat illiteracy and unenpl oynent and create a national solidarity
and regional developnent fund with a view to better offsetting the regiona

i mbal ances between the weal thi est and the econom cally nopst di sadvant aged

regi ons which still existed.

18. Updat ed i nformati on was al so necessary on devel opnents in the
Western Sahara issue and the inplenmentation of the United Nations settlenment
pl an and the Houston agreenents in that regard.

19. In keeping with the Committee's usual request, it would be useful for

t he Moroccan del egation to provide information on socio-econom ¢ indicators
concerning the inplenentati on of the Convention, since those data made it
possible to identify any social group particularly exposed to marginalization
and exclusion and least likely to be integrated in society.

20. In the area of human rights protection, States were no |onger solely
under an obligation not to do sonething, to refrain fromtaking action or
interfering (as had initially been the case for civil and political rights
only); they also had “positive” obligations to take a number of neasures,

not ably econonmic and social, to ensure the effective realization of and ful
respect for certain rights, even in relations between individuals (the
so-called “horizontal” effectiveness of rights), as noted by the Commttee in
its recommendati on No. XX (48) of 1996. Those soci o-econom ¢ indicators were
all the nore necessary in that, according to the |atest annual report of the
Moroccan Organi zation of Human Rights (OVDH), the nunber of persons living
bel ow the poverty line was continuing to grow under the inpact of the policy
of structural adjustnent and the failure to conply with the social conditions
attaching to privatizations. According to the OVDH, the constant
deterioration of living conditions was seriously prejudicing the norma

enj oynent, not only of social and economc rights, but also of civil and
political rights in Mbrocco. |In 1994 the Conmittee's experts had referred,
anong others, to the Berbers, the nomads, the Sahrawi s, the Bl acks and the
Baha'is as the groups nost likely to be di sadvant aged.

21. What had been the concrete result of the activities of the Human Ri ghts
Advi sory Council since its creation in 1990? What opi nions and
recommendati ons had it adopted? What practical influence had it had on the
Government? How were its relations with organizations in civil society?
According to the | atest report of the OVDH, the Advisory Council had not net
at all during the past year and had not taken any new initiative in the area
of human rights protection, notably as concerned the settlenent of cases of
victinms of enforced di sappearances. The OVDH also criticized the status and
conmposition of the Advisory Council, which, it alleged, were not in conformty
with United Nations resolutions on national human rights institutions.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1282
page 6

22. The powers of the Mnistry of Human Rights seened to be entirely
consistent with the Coomittee's wi shes and recommendati ons. However, the
attachnment of that body to the Mnistry of Justice in August 1997 seened to
himliable to weaken its role, since there also existed a division responsible
for humanitarian and social rights in the Mnistry of Foreign Affairs, whose
responsibilities included nmonitoring of the inplenmentati on of Mdrocco's

commi tments under international human rights instrunents. The OVDH was of the
view that the attachment of the Mnistry of Hunman Rights to the Mnistry of
Justice formalized a de facto situation which had prevailed since 1995, nanely
the insignificant role of the former in the area of protecting and pronoting
human rights. He asked for the delegation's views on the matter

23. The devel opnent of the role of NGOs and civil society in Mrocco
constituted a particularly significant advance and a very encouragi ng sign of
an inproved human rights situation. However, the Conmittee regretted the
negati ve i mage resulting fromthe decision taken by the Suprene Court of
Morocco on 16 July concerning M. Abraham Serfaty, an enblematic figure of the
opposition and fornmer nenber of the Mdroccan Conmuni st Party who had been
sentenced to life inprisonnment after being found guilty of plotting against
the internal security of the State for having called for the

sel f-determ nation of the people of the Western Sahara. M. Serfaty had been
in prison for 17 years, then rel eased and expelled to France in 1991 because
he was supposedly of Brazilian nationality. By not ruling on M. Serfaty's
nationality (Mroccan according to him Brazilian according to the Mroccan
Mnistry of the Interior), the judgenent of the Supreme Court of Myrocco

basi cal |y upheld the expul sion order and thus prohibited M. Serfaty from
returning to his country of birth. That decision, apparently |inked to new
statements by M. Serfaty in favour of a federal structure between two States,
Moroccan and Sahrawi, unfortunately risked being interpreted as a retrograde
step in the area of human rights. The Moroccan del egati on woul d no doubt w sh
to enlighten the Cormttee on the case.

24. Regarding part 2 of the report, entitled “Information in relation to
articles 2 to 7”7, he said that many m sunderstandi ngs had arisen in connection
with the assertion made in paragraph 50 that “problens of racia

di scrimnation do not exist in Mirocco” and that “Mroccans do not segregate
or discrimnate on the basis of race, colour, descent or origin”. |In the

opi nion of the Myroccan Governnent, as “the problem of racial discrimnation
does not arise in Mrocco” (paragraph 54), the delegation was not in a
position to provide information on the existence of special |egislation making
all fornms of acts of racisman offence, as required by article 4 of the
Convention; on the nunmbers of conplaints, investigations or judgenents

puni shing acts of racism in conformty with article 6 of the Convention; and
on the conditions in which the enjoynent of the rights specified in article 5
of the Convention was effectively guaranteed in practice w thout any racial or
et hnic discrimnation

25. As to the inplenmentation of articles 2 to 4 of the Convention, he noted
that the State party had nerely observed that equality of all before the | aw
was anchored in the Constitution without citing any provision condeming the
acts set out in article 4 of the Convention, arguing that the problem of

raci al discrimnation did not arise in Mdrocco and that the general provisions
of the law were sufficient to sanction any raci st acts (paragraphs 54 to 60).



CERD/ C/ SR. 1282
page 7

In general, all the texts cited in the report, apart fromthe specific

provi sion of the dahir of 15 Novenber 1958 which prohibited racia
discrimnation in the formation of political parties, were too general in view
of the requirenments of article 4.

26. In that connection, he rem nded the del egati on of Morocco that for the
Conmittee, it was in any event necessary to have |egislation prohibiting
racism so as to prevent any devel opnent of racism and to enshrine in the |aw
the commitnent of the State to conbating raci smand pronoting val ues of

tol erance and interracial and ethnic understanding within the framework of an
educational systemdirected to conbating discrimnation

27. Li kewi se, the information provided in paragraphs 61 to 71 was too
general and did not offer any concrete exanples of neasures to combat

di scrim nation agai nst the nost di sadvantaged groups, and in particul ar
Ber bers, nomads, Sahrawi s, Bl acks and Baha'is.

28. The Committee would be grateful to the del egation of Morocco if it could
provi de frank explanations on the situation of Mroccan Bl acks, who were
usually at the bottom of the social scale and were sonetines the victinms of
various forms of discrimnation owing to the prejudices of certain Arabs and
Berbers in the majority population. Clarification was al so necessary on the
situation of the Sahrawi s, hundreds of whom according to the 1998 report of
Amesty International, had disappeared in previous years, while the persons
rel eased in 1991 and the famlies of prisoners who had died in i ncommuni cado
detention or had suffered ill-treatnment on account of their alleged support
for the independence of Western Sahara had reportedly not received the
conpensati on owed them

29. Concerning the Baha'is, the Conmttee had still not received the replies
to the questions it had asked when it had considered the periodic report of
Morocco in 1994. It still did not know whether Baha'is were an inter-ethnic

group the nmenbershi p of which included Arabs, Berbers, Blacks, nomads and
Sahrawi s and whet her they were refused passports to | eave the country. On
that occasion it had taken the view that the fact that the Baha'is were

consi dered heretics was inconpatible with the right of everyone to freedom of
religion, conscience and expression, wthout any discrimnation, as |aid down
in article 5 of the Convention. Wth regard to that article, he would like to
have nore information on the draft |abour code referred to in paragraph 70 of
the report, an inportant initiative which ainmed to prohibit expressly and
render punishable by fine all discrimnation based on race, colour, nationa
descent or other reason in enploynment or professional matters, vocationa
trai ni ng, wages, advancenent, social benefits, dismssal and disciplinary
measures. Once adopted, the code would constitute an inportant innovation in
Morocco in the fight against racial discrimnation in the econom c sphere.

30. In respect of the inplenentation of article 6, the report only indicated
the renedies available in the event of violations of human rights and did not
provi de any exanple of a conplaint or a judgenent or any court statistics on
conpl ai nts, prosecutions, sentences or decisions on conmpensati on concerning
raci st offences. He rem nded the del egation that the assertion that there
were no raci st offences did not dispense the State party fromthe obligation



CERD/ C/ SR. 1282
page 8

to enact |egislation, because the absence of conplaints or prosecution and
light sentences might be signs of a failure to informthe public, indifference
on the part of the police and court authorities with regard to raci st offences
and | eniency of the courts towards that type of offence.

31. As to the inplenentation of article 7 of the Convention, he said that
par agraphs 74 to 78 of the report contained encouragi ng i nformati on on the
efforts of the Moroccan Governnent to pronote teaching of human rights in the
education systemand to inprove awareness of human rights anmong the police,

| awyers, doctors, judges, educators, trade unions and NGOs. He asked the

Mor occan del egation for an account of those activities.

32. Havi ng taken note of the very positive informati on contained in

par agraphs 79 to 87 of the report on the recognition of the special features
of the Berber culture and the introduction of classes in Berber dialects in
schools, the Cormittee hoped that the Mdroccan del egati on woul d provide it
with an initial assessment of the work of the conm ssions responsible for
those questions and informit whether concrete action had been taken to give
effect to policies to pronote the Berber | anguages and cul ture.

33. He noted with satisfaction the information that the Mroccan authorities
had published the text of the Convention since 1970 and asked what mneasures

t he Moroccan Covernnent had taken or intended to take to publish its periodic
reports as well as the correspondi ng concl usi ons, observations and
recomendati ons of the Committee.

34. Lastly, he asked the del egati on whether the Government of Mbrocco

pl anned to nake the optional declaration under article 14 of the Convention
and whether it had taken the requisite nmeasures to agree officially to the
amendment to article 8 of the Convention concerning the financing of the
Conmi ttee.

35. M. VALENCI A RODRI GQUEZ asked what results had been obtained by the
various bodies created by the Mdiroccan Governnent, notably the Human Ri ghts
Advi sory Council, the National Council on Youth and the Future, the service of
the Mnistry of Justice responsible for nonitoring and protecting human rights
and the division of the Mnistry of Foreign Affairs and Cooperati on, and what
results were expected fromthe activities of those bodies. He asked how were
the activities of those bodies coordinated. He also inquired whether
conplaints of racist violations were heard in an adm nistrative procedure or
by courts of first instance and, lastly, whether the decisions of the
conpetent courts were subject to appeal

36. Concerning the inplenentation of article 2 of the Convention, he noted
that, according to the report, there were no problenms of racial discrimnation
in Morocco because of contacts between Miroccan society and ot her peoples and
cultures. He was very pleased to note that the nmenbers of the Jew sh
comunity enjoyed the sane rights as other citizens and hoped that the
Government woul d continue to keep the Committee informed of devel opnents in
that policy, in particular with regard to the Berbers.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1282
page 9

37. In respect of the inplenmentation of article 4, he rem nded the

del egation that States parties were required to adopt provisions specifically
prohibiting racial discrimnation, even if they considered that the phenonmenon
did not exist in their societies.

38. In view of the dearth of information on the inplenmentation of article 5,
he asked the Myroccan Governnent to provide the Commttee with nore details,
in particular concerning the civil, political, econom c, social and cultura
rights of the Berber popul ation

39. Regarding article 6 of the Convention, he inquired whether internationa
standards, which took precedence over donestic provisions, could be directly

i nvoked in the courts, and whether the popul ation, and | awers and judges in

particul ar, had received information on the international standards on racia

di scrim nation.

40. As to the inplenentation of article 7 of the Convention, it would be
useful to take new neasures to devel op the teaching of human rights and
pronmote the Berber culture. The Committee would like to receive informtion
on the results obtained.

41. The information concerning radi o and tel evision broadcasts in Arabic,
French, English and Spani sh was satisfactory, but he would |ike nore

i nformati on about broadcasts in Berber. He also hoped that the text of the
Convention, the periodic report of Mdrocco and the rel evant concl usions of the
Committee woul d be di ssem nated as wi dely as possible in Mrocco.

42. Ms. McDOUGALL inquired what neasures had been taken by the Government of
Morocco to di ssem nate knowl edge of the Convention anobng government officials
and to heighten their awareness of the racial discrimnation issues raised by
it. She would also like to know about the achi evements of the Advisory
Councils and of programres relating to human rights created by the Government
and whet her the Councils had deci sion-maki ng powers. She asked the Mroccan
del egation to provide the Conmttee with figures on cases of racia

di scrimnation which had been referred to the courts as well as information
showi ng how the courts had ruled. Furthernore, she inquired whether the
Governnment had itself taken the initiative in certain instances to refer cases
i nvol ving acts of racial discrimnation to the courts and what the outcone had
been. Finally, she asked whether needy individuals received free |l egal aid or
some form of financial assistance so that they could institute proceedi ngs for
raci st acts.

43. In view of the deficiencies already noted in the reports submtted by
Morocco in 1994 and 1996, she said that it would be useful to have
clarification on the socio-econonmc situation of the mgjority of Moroccan

Bl acks and to know whether the Governnment was taking active nmeasures to conbat
the racial discrimnation of which those persons were the victinms, and in
particul ar racist acts occurring in everyday life.

44, Rem ndi ng the del egati on of the questions asked in 1994 and 1996 by
M. Sherifis and M. Diaconu, she said that she would be grateful to the
Moroccan del egation if it could provide the Conmittee information on

di scrimnation agai nst foreign workers and | egal provisions for granting
foreigners citizenship.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1282
page 10

45, M. DIACONU noted that the first reference to a | egislative provision on
raci al discrimnation did not appear until paragraph 58 of the report under
consi deration, where nmention was nmade of dahir 258, and paragraph 70,
concerning the draft |abour code. The latter suggested that racia
discrimnation did in fact exist in Mdrocco, at any rate in that area.

Li kewi se, the information provided in paragraph 80, which spoke of the

exi stence of a Berber culture in the broad sense that was based on religion
traditions and spiritual notions, proved the presence of a Berber ethnic
reality. Consequently the Modroccan State should recogni ze the Berber ethnic
group as such and treat it in a manner in conformty with the provisions of
t he Conventi on.

46. Concerning article 4, he had taken due note of the information provided
by the del egati on of Morocco that the Government of Myrocco intended to bring
national legislation into line with international standards, and he deeply
hoped that article 4 of the Convention would be incorporated into Mroccan
nati onal |egislation at that tine.

47. Regar di ng measures to pronote teaching in mnority |anguages in order to
reflect the cultural diversity of Mdrocco, he had taken note with considerable
interest of the royal declaration of 1994 recogni zing the need to introduce
the teachi ng of Berber dial ects.

48. On the general plan, he was prepared to agree that racial discrimnation
in Morocco m ght not be wi despread, but he reaffirmed the need to nmake
preventive legislation in order to prohibit even isolated racist acts.

49. As to religious freedom he said that the Comrittee carefully avoi ded
any confusion between religion and ethnic group, ternms which did not
necessarily refer to matching realities, and it only discussed the question of
religious freedomto the extent that its enjoynent was the target of racial
ethnic or national discrimnation

50. Ms. ZQU rem nded the del egation that the provisions of article 4 were
bi nding and that all States parties were required to pass |egislation giving
themeffect. As the information provided in paragraphs 56-60 of the report
did not directly deal with nmeasures to conbat racial discrimnation, the
Government of Mdrocco shoul d consider drafting without delay provisions which
were fully consonant with the spirit of the Convention. No country could
claimto be totally free of racial discrimnation, and Morocco was no
exception to that rule.

51. The CHAI RMAN endorsed that opinion

52. M. YUTZIS | i kewi se expressed satisfaction at the productive dial ogue
bet ween the del egati on of Mdrocco and the Conmittee and thanked M. de Gouttes
for his thorough analysis of the report. The information contained therein
needed to be fleshed out by nore precise statistics concerning, in particular
t he proportion of menmbers of the Jewi sh comunity that had access to

hi gh-1 evel posts and representative bodies (para. 52). Concerning

par agraph 51 of the report, he asked why the Mdroccan authorities only

recogni zed freedom of worship for nonotheistic religions. He asked whether
there were plans to broaden that tol erance.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1282
page 11

53. M. van BOVEN first expressed his satisfaction at the appointnent to the
post of Prime Mnister of M. Youssoufi, an ardent defender of human rights
whom he had had the privilege of neeting when he had been Secretary-General of
t he Union des avocats arabes.

54, The assertion in the report that the problem of racial discrimnation
did not arise in Mdrocco could not be sufficient for the Commttee. Even if
it took on “discreet” forms in certain countries, racial discrimnation was
unfortunately a universal reality. Consequently the creation of a sound

| egi sl ative framework was an obligation for all States Parties for purposes of
puni shment in conformty with article 4, and for the purposes of prevention in
accordance with article 7.

55. He agreed with the concern expressed by M. de Gouttes about m ssing
Sahrawi s and | ooked forward to the del egation's explanation. Anpong the
positive neasures he wel coned the real and grow ng place set aside for Berber
culture. Lastly, he called upon the State party to consi der meking the

decl aration under article 14 of the Convention and to take the necessary steps
for official acceptance of the amendnent to article 8, paragraph 6, of the
Convention w thout del ay.

56. Ms. SADIQ ALI, acknow edging the quality of the report of Morocco,
focused on the donestic unrest which periodically shook the country. To
mention just two exanples: the security forces had intervened brutally in
February 1994 in Fez against radical Mislins and students belonging to

| eft-wi ng organi zations, and in May 1997 the police had used force in an
unjustified manner to di sperse non-violent denonstrations organi zed by the
Associ ati on of Unenpl oyed Degree-Hol ders, causing many injuries. She asked
whet her the Government of Myrocco had taken neasures to remedy the di scontent
of certain categories of the population, of which those denobnstrations were an
illustration.

57. M. DI ACONU pointed out that questions of unenployment and donestic
conflicts had nothing to do with the provisions of the Convention which the
Conmittee was responsible for nonitoring.

58. The CHAI RMAN agreed with that observation, which also applied to
religious questions. He also objected to the insistent calls directed at

del egations with regard to article 14 and the desire of certain European
countries to inpose their values on the rest of the world. Al States Parties
were aware of the existence of that article and nust be free to deci de whet her
or not to make the declaration referred to therein

59. Ms. SADIQ ALI stressed that the question was not unrelated to the work
of the Committee, because it was very likely that a large proportion of the
many unenpl oyed degree-hol ders were of foreign origin

60. M. de GOUTTES pointed out that the unenploynment rate could be
interpreted as a soci o-econom ¢ indicator of the |ack of integration of
certain mnority groups in a society. |If certain racial or ethnic
characteristics were associated with these groups, then the question of
unempl oynment did in fact fall within the purview of the Committee. The sanme




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1282
page 12

applied to domestic unrest, which mght constitute a threat to the right to
security of person and to protection by the State agai nst violence or bodily
harm whether inflicted by government officials or by any individual, group or
institution (article 5 (b) of the Convention).

61. Al so, although the declaration under article 14 of the Convention was
optional, it was a valuable contribution to the Convention's effective

i npl enmentation. The assertion that that was a typically European approach was
unf ounded, because, firstly, the General Assenbly itself had urged States to
make the declaration and, secondly, the 25 states that had done so included

Al geria, Chile, Costa Rica, Ecuador, Peru, the Republic of Korea, Senegal and
Uruguay, none of them European countries. Those countries had had the courage
to expose thenselves to the potential inconveni ences of such a comritnent in
terms of sovereignty and deserved prai se.

62. M. DIACONU said that he was not insensitive to the argunments put
forward but objected to the constant tendency to extend the work of the
Committee to areas which did not concern it.

63. M. RECHETOV said that countries which made the decl arati on under
article 14 took an additional step towards the npost effective possible

i mpl enentati on of the Convention, and the ideal situation would be for al
States parties to follow suit. Although it must be recognized that, for

hi storical, cultural and econom c reasons, certain articles of the Convention
were inplemented differently in each country, there were no grounds for

all eging that content of article 14 reflected a “European frame of m nd”

64. M. SHAHI referred to Mdorocco's conmitnent, reaffirmed in its
Constitution, to universally recognized human rights (para. 17 of the report)
and to the creation in 1993 of the Mnistry of Human Ri ghts, whose functions
i ncluded studying all laws and regul ations to assess their conformty with
human rights principles and propose any necessary adjustments. He requested
t he Moroccan del egati on, when it introduced the next report, to explain in
detail what concrete nmeasures had been taken to bring Mroccan donmestic | aw
into line with international treaties.

65. M. BENJELLOUN TOQU M (Morocco) said that, as M. de Gouttes had seen
there was a need to dispel a m sunderstanding concerning a |lack of information
on various ethnic groups before continuing the dialogue. Although the

Mor occan popul ation had in fact emerged fromtwo different ethnic groups,
Arabs and Berbers, over the centuries, and as a function of the various
dynasties which had governed the country, a number of Berber tribes had taken
on Arab characteristics and a nunber of Arab tribes had taken on Berber
characteristics, and even the persons concerned would often have difficulty
sayi ng which ethnic group they belonged to. As to the distinction between
persons of black African and White African descent, interm ngling between
those two parts of Africa had been such that a single family m ght be made up
of Blacks and Whites. |In Mrocco there was a tendency to identify oneself as
bel ongi ng, for exanple, to the group of a particular town rather than on the
basis of ethnicity or colour. That was why the Moroccan Governnent did not
conduct popul ati on censuses on that basis. Also, as far as he knew, no
associ ation or NGO had reported any racial discrimnation




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1282
page 13

66. As to the inplenentation of article 4, the absence of specific

| egi sl ation could be explained in the same way; but it was likely that, in the
interest of conforming to the instrunents to which it was a party and the
requi renents of nodernity, Parliament would add the required provisions to
current |egislation, as had already been done in the draft |abour code.

67. The Committee could appreciate fromwhat had al ready been said that,
there was no urgent need to provide for protection against racia
discrimnation in Morocco. Priorities were set as a function of the country's
urgent needs, and if there was one problem which Mdrocco was trying to resolve
wi t hout delay, it was the problem of unenployment to which Ms. Sadiq Ali had
referred. It was a fact that education for the school and university

popul ation in Mdrocco was no longer in line with the needs of a nodern
econony, and that an al arm ng unenpl oyment rate had resulted. But the
Government was aware of that situation and seeking to find solutions through
di al ogue with the various categories of unenployed persons. Hardly a week
passed without the minister of a particular econom c sector receiving a

del egation. In that connection, he pointed out that the nost recent Finance
Act provided for a 40 per cent increase in budgetary allocations for the
soci al sector as a whole. The new Government was based on three main pillars;
one of themwas the Mnistry of Solidarity, Enploynent and Vocationa

Trai ning, which, owing to its social function, would have a nore substantia
budget .

68. He assured the Committee that, if it so desired, his del egation would
ask the Governnment to adopt the neasures requested to achieve conformty with
t he provisions of the Convention; the matter would be all the sinpler because
his country did not consider itself to be targeted.

69. M. BELMAHI (Mrocco), replying to a nunmber of questions about the
judiciary and legislation, said first that the proceedi ngs involving

M. Abraham Serfati were not over fromeither a legal or a political point of
view. Firstly, since the Suprenme Court was not conpetent to rule on his
nationality, he nmust institute new proceedings in the court of first instance.
Secondly, as to the political aspects, the Governnent intended, as stated in
its inaugural declaration, to resolve all pending problems, be it the case of
M. Serfati, the question of mssing persons or the settlenment of
conpensation. To that end, an intermnisterial commttee with a very broad
conmposition had already started its work in cooperation with the Human Ri ghts
Advi sory Council, and the Mnister for Human Ri ghts had expl ained in
Parliament that Commttee's objectives and worki ng nethods.

70. Turning to the Governnment's effort to bring Miroccan |egislation into
line with the international conventions and treaties to which Mrocco was a
party, he said that that was one of the nobst inportant projects of the
Governnment, and in particular of the departnent responsible for human rights.
In fact, it was already planned to create a conmittee to ensure such
conformty, because that was a | ong-term endeavour, in which texts nust be
drafted, and above all, their inplenmentation had to be nonitored. To that end
it was inportant to remain vigilant and to offer regular training for al
persons (judges, nmgistrates, police officers, etc.) whose duty it was to

i mpl enent the rel evant texts.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1282
page 14

71. M. BENJELLOUN TOU M (Morocco) sought to enlighten the Commttee on the
guestion of mssing persons and on the Western Sahara.

72. VWhen Mdrocco had decided to look into the matter of m ssing persons in
general, the Human Ri ghts Advisory Council and a nunber of human rights
protection bodies had entered into contact with the Wrking G oup on Enforced
or Involuntary D sappearances; thanks in particular to the lists of m ssing
persons which the Wirking G oup had conmuni cated to them they had succeeded
in elucidating many cases. Qhers, concerning both Sahrawi s and non- Sahraw s,
were still wunresolved, and work was continuing. In cases in which it proved

i npossible to find any trace of m ssing persons, Mrocco would nost |ikely

i ssue death certificates and conmpensate the famlies, just as other countries
had done before Mdirocco with the agreenent of the competent bodies of the
United Nations. He hoped that the Committee woul d appreciate how rmuch had
been done to reach a consensus on such sensitive questions. |t was inportant
to have a consensus so that the Advisory Council carried the necessary wei ght
when it nmade a recommendation to the King, and it was clear that if the King

i nstructed the conpetent authorities to inplenment a recommendation, that would
be done effectively.

73. In the Sahrawi context, the question of m ssing persons was being used
for propaganda purposes. |If the truth was really being sought, it was not
enough to say that there were hundreds of m ssing persons. Specific

i nformati on nmust be given on each of those individuals, at any rate their
names - and sonetinmes their various nanes - and the tribal sept or sub-sept to
whi ch they bel onged so as to be able to ascertain whether they had not died,
for example, during the skirm shes which took place prior to the ceasefire.
Those who had never returned honme had not all necessarily "“di sappeared”. The
Wor ki ng Group on Enforced or Involuntary Di sappearances had recogni zed the
difficulty of the undertaking in that area, which was all the greater because
some NGOs refused to comunicate to it information on “their lists”. The
Moroccan authorities were fully prepared to settle the problem of the m ssing
persons, whether they were Sahrawi s or not.

74. He then turned to the nore specific problemof the Western Sahara. The
qgquestion of the referendum was the subject of a United Nations

Security Council settlenment plan under which, unlike what usually happened in
such cases, the referendumwas to be supervised by representatives of the
United Nations and held under its auspices. The M NURSO (United Nations

M ssion for the Referendumin Western Sahara) and the ldentification

Conmmi ssi on were preparing the event. Having made mgj or concessions on the
ref erendum Morocco had obtai ned ot her prerogatives which should not be
criticized, because they nmerely restored the normal bal ance between the two
parties to the agreenent. The preparation of the referendumwas particularly
conpl ex because the participating popul ati on had not yet been determ ned. For
propaganda purposes the Polisario had initially estimted the popul ati on at
bet ween 500,000 and 1 million persons, but follow ng the adoption of the
settlenment plan, it had revised its figure downwards to 74,000 - nanely, the
popul ati on counted by the Spanish authorities before the transfer of power
from Spain to Morocco - when it had becane clear that it would be difficult
for it to exercise control over too |large a popul ation. M NURSO had been
given responsibility for inplenenting the identification criteria provided in
the settlement plan to determ ne who was Sahrawi and could take part in the



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1282
page 15

referendum The task was a difficult one, because the Polisario, on various
pretexts, was opposed to all ow ng persons who, under the settlenent rules,

bel onged to a tribal sub-sept included in the census conducted by Spain to be
recogni zed as Sahrawi s and take part in the referendum fearing that they
woul d favour Mbrocco.

75. Consequently the referendum pl anned for 1998 woul d take place sonmewhat

| ater, because at |east nine months were expected to el apse after the
identification of the persons authorized to vote; the length of time which the
i dentification process would take did not depend on Morocco, but on the
results of ongoi ng negotiations between the United Nations and the Polisario.

76. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the del egati on of Morocco for the conpetent way in
which it had replied to sone of the questions of the Conrittee and invited it
to resume the di al ogue the next norning.

77. The del egation of Mbrocco withdrew.

The neeting rose at 6.05 p.m




